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Competitive Spirit
The competition is there for two reasons: 

To learn from and knock out.

Teamwork
We have a common goal and we need 

each other to get there.

Concern for Customers
Our future is tied up with our customers 
— Along with their Banking needs and 
wants.  They are the reason why we exist.

Cost Consciousness
It is not what we can cut, but on what we 

can save on.

Honesty
We need to be trustworthy and we need 
to be trusted. There must be integrity and 
reliability in our words and our character.

Core Values
To be the preferred bank of our 
partners in their financial growth, 
committed to providing excellent 
service and innovative products 

and services for all.  

Mission

To be the Bank for all, by 
delivering our commitments 
that will make banking easy 

for you.

Vision

AllBank | Annual Report 2020



About Us 

Financial Summary & Highlights 

Chairman’s Message 

President’s Report 

Operational Highlights 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Risk Management Framework 

Corporate Governance 

Structure of Internal Audit and Compliance Function 

Consumer Protection Practices 

Table of Organization

Board of Directors 

Management Committee 

Key Officers of the Bank 

Branch Banking Group 

Bank Products and Services 

Branch Directory 

Audited Financial Statements

1

4

6

8

12

16

18

30

40

42

44

48

52

54

56

58

60

61

About AllBank

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. is in the business 
of providing specialized financing products and 
services to working-class Filipinos and business 
owners. AllBank’s fundamental goal is to play 
a vital role in the development, not only in the 
communities that its branches call home, but 
also the businesses that surrounds it.

AllBank also offers services and highly 
competitive products that yield better returns 
compared to our competitors. Banking with us 
is never a chore due to our top-notch customer 
service innovations. But beyond anything, 
banking with us makes you feel at ease.

At AllBank, you can Work Hard. Live well. 
and Bank Easy.

Contents
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Business Model of the Bank
The main objective is to position the 
Bank strategically to compete effectively 
especially during the Pandemic. In order to 
achieve this goal, AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
has created its Business Strategy to support 
the realization of its goals and mission which 
is to impart a disciplined approach by the 
management in its operations now and in the 
years to come. The Bank’s Business strategic 
plan covers all long-term and short-term 
plans for each group within its organization 
and demonstrates the Bank’s commitment 
to its Mission, Vision, and Objectives.

Guided by the Bank’s philosophy of making 
banking experience easier and convenient 

to our clients, AllBank continues to make 
banking easy for its clients by providing 
a wider range of financial products and 
services offering, including digital banking 
products and services developments.

The Bank provides different innovative 
financial products in deposits, loans, and 
digital banking to corporations, Micro, 
Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), 
Entrepreneurs, and working-class Filipinos 
which is accessible 24/7 Banking via 
AllBank Mobile Banking App, Corporate 
Internet Banking, E-KYC, E-Wallet, POS 
Cash-Out, Corporate Bulk Sending and 
ATM Services.
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The Bank’s Brand
We know you do your best to make your 
business grow, and we know that banking is an 
important part of your living, and take a toll due 
to the time and effort it requires. So, you can 
make the most of the work you put in, we aim 
to make banking easier for you.

Banking with us gives you quicker access to 
innovative business financing products and 
digital banking services at banking locations 
that are part of an expanding network of 
branches. Banking with us also makes the lines 
easier to deal with our top-notch customer 
service innovations. But beyond anything, 
banking with us makes you feel at ease.

With AllBank, you can work hard, and bank easy.
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Total Net Income after Tax  
in Million Pesos

Financial Summary & Highlights

Total Assets  
in Billion Pesos

Total Deposit Liabilities  
in Billion Pesos

2020

5.62

2.65

29.43

2020

4.28

1.12

2018

3.26

1.70

15.90

2018

2.07

1.04

2019

5.76

2.58

33.31

2019

4.42

1.10

2017

2.95

1.53

20.50

2017

1.87

1.02

2016

2.01

1.39

20.19

2016

1.05

0.85

Total Gross Loans  
in Billion Pesos

Total Equity 
in Billion Pesos

2020 20202018 20182019 20192017 20172016 2016

20202018 201920172016
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Profitability

In Thousand P 2020 2019 % inc (dec)

Total Net Interest Income              195,517              179,574 8.9%

Total Non-Interest Income                51,520                59,571 -13.5%

Total Non-interest Expenses              202,884              169,891 19.4%

Pre-provision profit                44,153                69,254 -36.2%

Provision for credit losses (Net)                  5,038                18,341 -72.5%

Net Income After Tax                29,432                33,313 -11.7%

    

Selected Balance Sheet Data

In Thousand P 2020 2019 % inc (dec)

Liquid Assets           2,457,061           2,804,307 -12.4%

Gross Loans           2,650,104           2,581,510 2.7%

Total Assets           5,623,352           5,758,194 -2.3%

Total Deposit           4,278,729           4,418,849 -3.2%

Total Equity           1,121,067           1,097,439 2.2%

    

Selected Ratios  

In % 2020 2019

Return on Average Equity 3% 3%  

Return on Average  Resources 1% 1%  

Tier 1 Capital Ratio 30% 35%  

Capital Adequacy Ratio 30% 38%  
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Chairman’s 
Message

Dear Stockholders,
The pandemic of 2020 left nearly every 
sector of our economy trounced and tired 
out. Nevertheless, like the rest of the players 
in the banking industry, we continued to hold 
our ground for the sake of our accountholders 
and more importantly, for our country. We 
assured our clients that the unique customer 
experience that they have been enjoying 
during the pre-pandemic environment will 
remain unruffled. Customer service as well 
as systems and processes continued to be 
available throughout the year. The challenges 
were many but because our resolve to keep on 
making banking easier for our customers, we 
came out of 2020 to be better and bigger.

“Notwithstanding the effect 
of the pandemic situation  
in our banking operations  
and the cessation of housing 
loan referrals, improvements 
in key business areas towards 
digitalization in products  
and services have delivered 
good results for AllBank.”
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Notwithstanding the effect of the pandemic 
situation in our banking operations and 
the cessation of housing loan referrals, 
improvements in key business areas towards 
digitalization in products and services have 
delivered good results for AllBank. We are 
confident that we will do better in 2021 
now that we have mobilized our digitalized 
products and services. Barring any more severe 
circumstances, we will hit our targeted net 
income after tax for 2021.

Improvement in AllBank’s industry ranking: 
(Based on BSP Statistics – Banking Financial 
Statements)

Total Assets
Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20

P in
Million Ranking P in

Million Ranking P in
Million Ranking

3,253.49 22 5,724.44 20 5,592.10 19

Total Deposits Liabilities
Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20

P in
Million Ranking P in

Million Ranking P in
Million Ranking

2,065.40 23 4,418.85 20 4,278.73 19

Total Loans & Others Receivables
Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20

P in
Million Ranking P in

Million Ranking P in
Million Ranking

2,448.82 21 3,777.45 18 3,113.59 18

Total Capital
Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20

P in
Million Ranking P in

Million Ranking P in
Million Ranking

1,036.34 19 1,095.95 19 1,142.26 18

Total ROE (%)
Dec-18 Dec-19 Dec-20

P in
Million Ranking P in

Million Ranking P in
Million Ranking

0.500 44 3.00 35 3.46 22

Our quest for providing unique customer 
experience is adaptive to the times and 
thus, the year 2020 also celebrates the 
completion of many digitalization initiatives 
such as mobile banking app, corporate 
internet banking and InstaPay electronic 
transmissions, to name a few. We continue 
to be driven by our motto: Work Hard. Bank 
Easy. Thus, we are confident that these 
improvements will continue to give our 
customers better and faster services that will 
ultimately make life easier.

Throughout the year, we worked with utmost 
safety and good in health and in mind so that 
we can continue to provide uninterrupted 
operations. Our efforts at delivering unique 
customer journey to our clients would not 
have been possible if not for our dedicated 
employees whom we have enabled to ensure 
that customers can transact safely and 
securely during these crucial times.

On behalf of the Board, let me thank you for 
your continued support and confidence in 
AllBank. We send out sympathies to those 
affected by these difficult times and assure 
you that AllBank will be here to help our 
customers get through these challenges. 
Thank you for continuing to trust AllBank.

LILI B. RAMIREZ
Chairman 
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President’s 
Report

To our shareholders, partners, 
customers, and employees,
While the pandemic broke into our lives,
took away routines and left us all with many
uncertainties, AllBank has remained 
committed to its mission, to be present for 
its customers and help them through these 
difficult times.

We have always been here to meet your
financial needs. In fact, the Bank has continued
to upgrade its products and services and
proceeded to launch several new innovations
that have already allowed our customers to
Bank Easy under these “new normal” times.

2020 was by no means an unusual year, and
we are still navigating ourselves through the
aftermath of this pandemic. We believe that
we have done this well, as we were able to
remain financially and operationally sound.

I am happy to report to you that AllBank 
continued to be profitable, with this satisfactory 
performance is P249 million in Total Revenues, 
higher by 7.5% vs. the previous year.

Not even the situation arising from the pandemic 
did much for the Bank’s deposit levels and loan 
portfolio. AllBank posted a Total Assets balance 
of P5.62 billion at the end of 2020, a slight 2.3% 
dip from 2019. Still, we managed to post a year 
end Total Deposits balance of P4.1 billion, which is 
nearly as much as the previous year’s P4.4 billion.

Year-to-date (YTD) ADB for Total Deposit
however, increased by 35.2%, Low Cost Deposit
Total YTD ADB increased by 44.1%, while YTD
ADB for High Cost Deposit increased by 16.1% 
compared to last year. 

In the meantime, Loans and Other Receivables 
was constant at P2.8 billion due to the 
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slowdown in housing loans and decrease in 
interest rates.

We opted to focus on delivering the Unique
Customer Experience that we have always been
known for, as well as stepping up on our ongoing
upgrade of products and services, all of which
will ultimately make it easier for our clients to
bank with us.

Also, we are pleased to report the improvement
in the Bank’s Cost of Funds. From 1.75% in the
previous year, it dropped to 0.93% as of end of
2020, and we are looking forward to further
reducing it in the next succeeding years.

DIGITAL IS THE KEY
We marked 2020 with the introduction of
several innovative products, and continued to fill
up our chest of talents and competencies with
ongoing projects in the line of digital technology
and enhancement in customer journey. One of
them is our Corporate Internet Banking project
which was implemented in February, fortuitously
at the start of the community lockdowns.

During these times when the staying home is
preferred and travel is limited, digital banking
provides extended convenience for everyone.
Today, digital banking is not merely limited
to real-time balance inquiry but to interbank
transfers, bills payment, online and in-store
purchases and more cashless provisions.

These conveniences are now available in our
mobile banking apps for both iOS and Android
devices which were launched at the start of
the enhanced community quarantine. Similarly
benefiting our numerous tech-savvy customers
and our market – the working class as well as
large, small and medium-scale enterprises – are
the digital infrastructures for InstaPay, PesoNet, 
and All Easy which were successively unveiled.

Towards the second half of the year, E-Wallet,
UPop Online as well as PDC Warehousing, and
Checkwriting all saw fruition.

MANAGING THE ORGANIZATION
The year allowed us to fill in the manpower 
requirements of several departments. We have 
employed qualified managers and leaders to 

head vital departments and units of AllBank’s 
organization. We continue to fill up new positions 
and existing vacancies.

We took on the challenge of ensuring that the
employees and clients are safe while transacting
with us. Social distancing, health check and 
safety measures were not simply government-
mandated protocols but are genuine habits 
we aim to be inculcated among our employees. 
During the lockdowns, we deployed skeletal 
workforce and kept branches open from Mondays 
to Saturdays.

HUMANIZED DIGITAL BANKING
AllBank is riding high in its transformation
journey. The successful implementation of
our initiatives in digitalization and innovation
technology have put us alongside competition
and we are now primed to move with the same
pace as the changing environment. 

While the pandemic may have set us back 
in some aspects of operations, we remain 
strong in our resolve to serve our customers 
needs and wants particularly in the line of 
digital technology-driven solutions. We will 
strive to make these improvements, not at all 
confounding, but changes that will make banking 
a more pleasant, easy, and convenient experience 
for our clients.

Our heartfelt appreciation goes out to you, our
dear shareholders, customers, partners and
employees, for your stalwart commitment and
loyal support to AllBank Inc.

We thank the guidance of our Board of Directors. 
We look forward to achieving our goal of making 
AllBank a fully technology driven and digitalized 
bank and making banking easy for our customers.

Thank you.

JESUS VICENTE O.  GARCIA
President
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Going Digital: The New 
Face of Banking

The new paradigm created by the pandemic 
necessitates an adaptive bank that can cater 
to customers’ changing needs—and AllBank 
proves to be well-equipped to do so.
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Operational Highlights

BRANCH BANKING GROUP

DEPOSIT LEVELS IN BILLIONS

2020 2019
% Increase 
(Decrease)

Total 
Deposits

4.28 4.42 3.2%

YTD ADB 3.88 2.87 35.2 %
Low Cost 
Deposits 
(CASA)

2.59 1.79 44.1 %

High Cost 
Deposits

1.29 1.08 16.1%

Amidst the challenges brought about by the 
pandemic, the Branch Banking Group’s (BBG) 
operations remained constant and unwavering. 
Total deposit balance slightly dipped by 
P140 million. AllBank, however, saw its total 
deposit average daily balance (ADB) at a more 
favorable P3.88 billion by yearend, which is a 
very favorable 35.2% increase compared to last 

year’s ADB of P2.87 billion. Most of this came 
from improved deposits from non-affiliate 
accounts, which reached  P2.29 billion by the end 
of the year. These were mostly in the form of 
low-cost deposits, the total of which reached an 
ADB of P2.59 billion in 2020.

The Digital Banking products and services 
offered by the Bank, coupled with the tireless 
marketing efforts and initiatives of the Branch 
Managers resulted in the substantial increase in 
the Low Cost Deposit.  

TREASURY DEPARTMENT
AllBank’s deposit liabilities reached P4.28 billion 
at the end of 2020, lower by  3.2% than P4.42 
billion reported in the previous year. On the 
other hand, investment with Bangko Sentral 
ng Pilipinas (BSP) such as Reverse Repurchase, 
Overnight Deposit and Term Deposit Facility 
and other banks grew by about 40%, hitting 
P1.62 billion at yearend or P460 million more 
than P1.16 billion in 2019.
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COMMERCIAL AND CONSUMER 
LENDING GROUP
AllBank continued to assure its clients 
that their interest remains secure. But 
with the unexpected challenges brought 
about by the pandemic-stricken economy, 
the Commercial and Consumer Lending 
Group briefly slowed down in the release 
of consumer loans. When lending activities 
resumed upon the relaxation of community 
quarantine and mobility restrictions, 
the Bank set up more stringent credit 
standards and installed additional lending 
safeguards.

These adjustments led to minimal yet still 
very satisfactory improvement in Loan 
Portfolio. The P68-million or 3% increase 
from P2.58 billion in 2019 to P2.65 billion 
in 2020 resulted from the mixed growth 
in consumer and commercial loans. While 
commercial loan releases saw a slight dip 
of two percent to P1.32 billion by the end 
of 2020, consumer loans still managed to 
grow by 8%, reaching P1.33 billion at the 
end of the same period.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  
AND DIGITALIZATION
The year 2020 saw the completion of several 
digitalization projects. The Bank went full gear 
in accomplishing and implementing digitalization 
and automation initiatives that are all aimed 
not only at increasing income streams but also 
in improving efficiency in critical aspects of 
operations.

Income Generating 
Initiatives

Core Banking System 
Configuration

January Clearing Entries 
(Accounting) PCHC 
Processing Fee 
Validation

February Corporate Internet 
Banking InstaPay 
sending for 
Corporate Banking
EMI Issuer License 
(Issuance of Cash 
Card)

March Mobile Banking for 
iOS

Returned Checks 
(Outward)
Unposted Checks 
(Inward)

April Mobile Banking for 
Android 

May Agency Banking Intranet
July AllEasy Linking of 

Account
CDRC

August InstaPay receiving 
of AllEasy PesoNet 
sending for 
Corporate Banking

PCF Replenishment 
Branch 
reimbursement 
Asset Management 
System
Centralized Contract 
Database

September PDC Warehousing
QR PH Person to 
Person (P2P)

Incident Report 
Management

October Person to Merchant 
(TP2M) Corporate 
Bulk Sending via 
InstaPay

November POS Cash Out
December InstaPay v2.0 Real 

Time Payment (RTP)

P3.88Bn

AVERAGE DAILY BALANCE - TOTAL DEPOSIT

P2.65Bn

LOAN PORTFOLIO
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CORPORATE INTERNET BANKING
The newly launched Corporate Internet 
Banking facility helps clients to conveniently 
and instantly conduct essential financial 
transactions. 

More importantly, this application helps the 
Bank’s corporate clients manage business 
finances because it is replete with reporting 
information and funds movement capabilities 
that can be accessed from the comforts 
of one’s desktop or, laptop. The AllBank 
Corporate Online Banking Facility allows 
clients to perform the following:
• Generate Account Summary
• Generate Statement of Account
• Request Checkbook
• Perform Fund Transfer to own and to other 

AllBank account
• Perform Fund Transfer to other Bank via 

Instapay and Pesonet
• Perform Bulk Fund Transfer
• Schedule Fund Transfer

MOBILE BANKING APP
In this modern age, some people are still 
hesitant about changing ways or methods 
in transacting with their banks. However, 
mobile banking enables one to do just about 
everything with a few clicks on his tablet or 
smart phone. The AllBank Mobile Banking 
App offers a variety of features that not only 
saves time and effort but gives the comfort 
of staying safely at home while the COVID-19 
pandemic to this day limits physical access 
to banks and other financial institutions. 
Upon enrollment with their maintaining 
branch, AllBank account holders can enjoy the 
features of the Mobile Banking Application, 
namely:

• Viewing of Savings, Checking Account and 
Time Deposit

• Viewing of Loan Information and Balance
• Unlimited Transaction History
• Fund Transfer to Own and Other AllBank 

account
• Fund Transfer to Other Bank via Instapay
• Sending and Receiving of Funds via QR Code
• Payment for purchase of goods or services 

via QRPh.

Operational Highlights
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MOBILE BANKING VELOCITY CARD  
(MV CASH CARD)
Aptly named because of the guaranteed ease 
and swift application, the Mobile Banking  
Velocity Cash Card (MV Cash Card) is a 
reloadable electronic wallet (e-Wallet) with 
a stored cash value that allows one to access 
funds or pay for purchases securely at any ATM, 
point of sale (POS) terminal and other electronic 
channels. The MV Cash Card is a non-interest 
bearing and is not covered by the PDIC but with 
a 5-year card validity.

CHECK WRITING FACILITY
Another application which gives significant 
contributions in cost-cutting both for the 
Bank and for its clients is the Check Writing 
Facility. This web-based solution has a batch 
printing function done via the upload of 
template with the check information. Aside 
from this, it has Maker, Checker and Approver 
functionalities which cut the process of manual 
check preparation, approval and disbursement. 
Because it brings huge savings in time and 
costs, it is particularly useful when processing 
a large number of checks. Any checking 
accountholder has the option of printing 
checks onsite, that is at home or in his place of 
business, or letting the Bank print the checks 
and vouchers on his behalf.

PDC WAREHOUSING
Banks normally warehouse or safekeep post-
dated checks (PDCs) and deposit the checks 
to the client’s accounts when the value date 
becomes due. In 2020, AllBank implemented 
a self-service web application that allows 
the electronic upload of PDCs and generates 
reports of outstanding, deposited and rejected 
checks.

PERSON-2-MERCHANT (P2M) AND QRPH 
PERSON-2-PERSON (P2P) APPLICATIONS
Since ease of fund transfer and instantaneous 
processing are vital in the current market-
driven environment, AllBank’s development of 

the Person-to-Merchant and QRPH Person-
to-Person applications will soon allow its 
customers to perform real-time cashless 
and card less payment in many merchant 
establishments. All set and ready for the April 
2021 implementation, this P2M facility works 
by scanning the merchant’s AllBank QR code 
via the customer’s Mobile Banking app to pay 
for products or services with no service charge 
or convenience fee. On the receiving end, the 
merchant benefits from real-time crediting of 
payment.

CORPORATE BULK SENDING
With the use of application programming 
interface (API), AllBank aims to reduce costs 
and workloads of the Bank’s Corporate Clients 
by adopting a Corporate Bulk Sending facility. 
This capability allows real-time processing of 
bulk sending for payments and remittances. 
Account activity can be tracked more easily 
with Corporate Bulk Sending. The facility allows 
infinite sending via InstaPay for transactions 
less than P50,000 and via Pesonet for 
transactions more than P50,000.

INSTAPAY & PESONET FUND TRANSFER
AllBank utilizes the enhanced value that 
InstaPay and Pesonet Fund Transfer offer. 
Because of the interoperability among financial 
institutions promoted by the Bangko Sentral 
ng Pilipinas under the National Retail Payment 
System (NRPS), consumers now have the ability 
to transfer funds, whether by bank or electronic 
channels, from one account to another account. 
AllBank has implemented the use of Instapay 
and PESONet thru the following electronic 
channels:
• Instapay and PESONet via Corporate Online 

Banking System
• Instapay via Mobile Banking Application
• Instapay via Corporate Bulk Sending
• Instapay via QRPH in Mobile Banking 

Application
• PESONet via over-the-counter in AllBank 

Branches
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Going above and beyond our mandate, AllBank 
contributes more to society by empowering 
the communities where we operate in.  

Keeping Connected  
to the Needs of Society

Before the pandemic invaded the lives of 
communities everywhere, a number of AllBank 
volunteers were able to join the Agricrops 
Production Training Program held at Villar 
SIPAG Farm School in Bacoor, Cavite. Villar 
SIPAG is a non-profit, non-stock organization 
that was created with the mission of 
improving the quality of life of the people in 
the communities that the Vista affiliates have 
a business presence in. Seemingly the ideal 
program in a pandemic-stricken environment 
wherein quarantine situations necessitate the 
need for self-reliance and return to basics, the 
Bank participated in the Household Vegetable 
Production Course. The program which is offered 
to anyone with interest in urban agriculture 
is composed of 12 sessions that extend for 
a 3-month duration and can accommodate 
about 200 participants. AllBank’s volunteer 
participants joined in the culmination of 
the program which was marked by simple 
graduation rites and a harvest festival.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

12 in 3 months

SESSIONS

200
PARTICIPANTS
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Optimizing Risk 
Management

AllBank strengthens our risk management, 
especially in these unprecedented times, to 
safeguard the Bank and ensure we operate to 
the best of our abilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

In the banking industry, risk management 
refers to ways of identifying potential risks in 
advance, analyzing them, and come up with 
courses of action to reduce/curb the risk. Risk 
is everyone’s responsibility.

“AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. assesses and 
anticipates risk to determine what steps 
should be done to prevent the likelihood of 
negatively affecting its operation.”

The Board of Directors leads the risk 
management direction, formulates the 
corporate risk policy, sets risk tolerances and 
appetite, and provides risk oversight function 
through the Risk Oversight Committee 
(ROC).
The members of the ROC possess a range 
of expertise as well as adequate knowledge 
of AllBank’s risk exposures. They develop 
appropriate strategies for preventing losses 
and minimizing the impact of losses when 
they occur.  The ROC is supported by the Risk 
Management Unit.

Specifically, the ROC shall:
1. Identify and assess the risk
2. Develop risk management strategies
3. Oversee the implementation of the risk 

management plan and its mitigants
4. Review and revise the plan as needed.  

The Management supervises various types 
of risks from a comprehensive perspective.  
In managing these risks, consideration 
is given not only on risk minimization 
but also on controlling risks to make an 
optimal contribution to the Bank.  This 
requires a thorough, timely, and reasonable 
measurement of different types of risks.  

VARIOUS TYPES OF RISKS

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors carries out its oversight 
function through the Risk Oversight Committee 
(ROC), which is tasked to establish and 
maintain a sound risk management system, 
propose guidelines, and regularly review risk 
management structures, limits, and exposures 
across the Bank, under the existing rules, 
regulations and acceptable standards on risk 
management.

The Risk Management approach of AllBank 
(A Thrift Bank), Inc. is premised on three lines 
of defense – Risk-Taking Units (RTUs), Risk 
Management Unit (RMU), and Internal Audit 
Department (IAD). The RTUs are responsible for 
the day-to-day management of risks inherent in 
their business activities; the RMU is responsible 
for setting the risk management framework 
and developing tools and methodologies for 
the identification, measurement, control, 
and monitoring and mitigants of risks; while 
IAD provides independent assurance of the 
effectiveness of the risk management approach.

The Risk Management Unit (RMU) reports 
directly to the ROC as an independent Unit 
tasked with managing the overall risks inherent 
in the Bank’s operations and businesses. RMU 
is also responsible for ensuring enterprise-wide 
risk awareness and aiding RTUs in the execution 
of various risk policies, structure tools, and 
methodologies.

The four (4) major areas of risk in AllBank’s 
business operations are (1) Credit Risk; (2) 
Market and Liquidity Risk; (3) Operational Risk; 
and (4) IT Risk, which includes among others 
people and process risk, information security 
and technology risk, outsourcing and legal risk.

Risk Management Framework
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CREDIT RISK
Credit Risk is defined as the risk of loss due to the failure of a borrower to meet its payment 
obligations. The Bank has its Credit Policy Manual which outlines the lending policies and 
procedures in managing credit risk.  The Credit and Control Department (CCD) and Loan 
Administration Department (LAD) were set up to ensure that the quality of the loan portfolio 
of the bank is strictly monitored and to ensure that adequate provisions for probable losses are 
established under the BSP Manual of Regulations.  The Bank also developed its Internal Credit Risk 
Rating System (ICRRS) to ensure that the creditworthiness of the borrower is being evaluated 
under the risk appetite of the Bank.  

Risk Grouping and the related allowance for impairment
2020

(in Thousand P)
Due from 

BSP*

Due from 
Other 

Banks**
HTM 

Investments

Loans 
and Other 

Receivables TOTAL
Carrying Amount  2,143,687  245,007  109,037  2,711,460  5,209,191 

Individually impaired  254,495  254,495 
Allowance for impairment -60,887 -60,887 

 -    -    -    193,607  193,607 

Neither past due nor 
impaired

 2,143,687  245,007  109,037  2,517,853  5,015,583 

Total Carrying Amount  2,143,687  245,007  109,037  2,711,460  5,209,191 

2019

(in Thousand P)
Due from 

BSP*

Due from 
Other 

Banks**
HTM 

Investments

Loans 
and Other 

Receivables TOTAL
Carrying Amount  2,409,150  346,918  34,027  2,640,433  5,430,529 

Individually impaired  277,620  277,620 
Allowance for impairment -55,724 -55,724 

 221,895  221,895 

Neither past due nor 
impaired

 2,409,150  346,918  34,027  2,418,538  5,208,634 

Total Carrying Amount  2,409,150  346,918  34,027  2,640,433  5,430,529 

* includes loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreement
** includes time deposits with maturities of more than three months
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MARKET AND LIQUIDITY RISK
The Bank has its Market and Liquidity Risk Framework which provides guidelines and procedures 
in identifying the risks inherent in trading and non-trading activities. Included in the framework 
are methodologies to measure exposures, control, and mitigate the risk through setting up limits 
structure and to monitor and report any breaches in the set limits. The Bank’s liquidity policy 
is to manage its operations to ensure that sufficient funds are readily available in addressing 
the credit demands and client withdrawals. To ensure that AllBank has sufficient liquidity at 
all times, the Bank formulated a liquidity contingency plan using scenarios of adverse liquidity 
conditions. Stress tests are conducted and results are being used to identify sources of potential 
strain and to determine the impact on the Bank’s cash flow, liquidity, solvency, and profitability.

Concentrations of Credit Risk by Sector
2020

(in Thousand P)
Due from 

BSP*
Due from 

Other Banks**

Investment 
Securities at 

Amortized 
Cost

Loans 
and Other 

Receivables TOTAL
Financial Intermediaries  2,143,687  245,007  109,037  2,497,731 
Real Estate, renting and 
other related activities

 1,585,824  1,585,824 

Wholesale and Retail  185,314  185,314 
Others  1,001,210  1,001,210 
Total  2,143,687  245,007  109,037  2,772,348  5,270,078 

2019

(in Thousand P)
Due from 

BSP*
Due from 

Other Banks**

Investment 
Securities at 

Amortized 
Cost

Loans 
and Other 

Receivables TOTAL

Financial Intermediaries  2,409,150  346,918  34,027  2,790,096 
Real Estate, renting and 
other related activities

 1,613,304  1,613,304 

Wholesale and Retail  84,102  84,102 
Others  998,752  998,752 
Total  2,409,150  346,918  34,027  2,696,158  5,486,254 

* includes loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreement
** includes time deposits with maturities of more than three months

Risk Management Framework
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2020

(in Thousand P) 0 - 3 months
3 months - 1 

year 1 yr to 5 yrs
More than 5 

yrs Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and other cash items  88,367  88,367 
Due from BSP  1,619,317  1,619,317 
Due from other Banks*  225,007  20,000  245,007 
Loans and receivables arising 
from the repurchase agreement

 524,370  524,370 

Loans receivables - net  257,859  396,333  783,231  1,274,037  2,711,460 
Investment securities at 
amortized cost - net

 537  105,000  3,500  109,037 

Other Deposits  6,767  6,767 
Due from Head Office or 
branches

 -   

Total Financial Assets  2,714,920  416,870  888,231  1,277,537  5,297,558 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities  4,168,883  35,231  71,115  3,500  4,278,729 
Lease Liabilities  2,456  6,935  65,052  74,443 
Other Liabilities  109,536  109,536 
Total Financial Liabilities  4,280,875  42,166  136,167  3,500  4,462,708 

NET POSITION -1,565,955  374,704  752,064  1,274,037  834,850 
CUMULATIVE NET POSITION -1,565,955 -1,191,251 -439,187  834,850 
*includes time deposits with maturities of more than three months

2019

(in Thousand P) 0 - 3 months
3 months - 1 

year 1 yr to 5 yrs
More than 5 

yrs Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and other cash items  68,238  68,238 
Due from BSP  1,157,483  1,157,483 
Due from other Banks*  326,918  20,000  346,918 
Loans and receivables arising 
from the repurchase agreement

 1,251,667  1,251,667 

Loans receivables - net  163,952  377,126  749,397  1,349,958  2,640,433 
Investment securities at 
amortized cost - net

 550  33,477  34,027 

Other Deposits  6,669  6,669 
Due from Head Office or 
branches

 11,114  11,114 

Total Financial Assets  2,979,373  397,676  756,066  1,383,435  5,516,551 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposit Liabilities  4,276,131  51,556  91,162  4,418,849 
Lease Liabilities  2,119  4,802  18,780  7,941  33,641 
Other Liabilities  175,905  175,905 
Total Financial Liabilities  4,454,154  56,358  109,941  7,941  4,628,395 

NET POSITION -1,474,781  341,318  646,125  1,375,494  888,156 
CUMULATIVE NET POSITION -1,474,781 -1,133,463 -487,338  888,156 
*includes time deposits with maturities of more than three months
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OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational Risk is defined as the risk of loss 
arising from inadequate or failed internal 
processes, people through fraud, unauthorized 
activities, error, omission, inefficiency, 
systems failure, or from external events. As 
a general rule, the RTUs are responsible for 
the implementation of risk policies, tools, 
and methodologies, including identification, 
assessment, mitigation, and control of risks 
inherent within their areas of operations.

AllBank’s risk mitigation and control are 
determined using the Four Ts process – 
Tolerate, Treat, Transfer or Terminate. Results 
of risk monitoring are reported to the Board of 
Directors thru the Risk Oversight Committee. 
Also, the Bank has a Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) which aims to improve 
the Bank’s preparedness in different disaster 
scenarios and which includes scenario-
based guidelines and procedures, systematic 
testing, employee awareness, and continuous 
improvement. Part of the BCM is the Business 
Impact Analysis (BIA) which is conducted 
to determine the critical processes to be 
prioritized based on allowable downtime. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RISK
As AllBank embarks on technology advances 
to improve its process automation, offer 
innovative products and services, and 
subsequently achieve its strategic goal, more 
robust management of IT Risk becomes a 
necessity. IT Risk as defined on BSP circular 
808 as any potential adverse outcome, 
damage, loss, violation, failure, or disruption 
associated with the use or reliance on the 
computer, hardware, software, devices, 
system, application, and networks. To 
mitigate those risks, AllBank develops its own 
Information Technology Risk Management 
Policy that provides for a strengthened 
foundation and guidance on how the Bank 
should effectively manage its technology risks.  
It also formulated a Vendors’ Outsourcing 
Framework to ensure that the Bank will 
engage with the best fit and most qualified 
service provider. 

REPUTATIONAL AND LEGAL RISK
Unlike other types of risks (e.g. Credit, Market 
and Liquidity, Operational and IT Risk) that 
the bank has to manage, Reputational 
and Legal Risks are intangible and hard to 
measure for they can directly damage the 

Risk Management Framework
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Bank’s brand and reputation. Reputation is 
one of the most valuable and fragile assets 
that a bank can have. Reputation is the key 
to building public and consumer trust.  A 
good reputation can set a bank apart from 
its competitors while a bad reputation 
can drive away potential clients. AllBank 
manages these risks through aligned policies 
and procedures (i.e. enactment of a Data 
Privacy Manual and Appointment of Data 
Privacy Officer). AllBank further ensures 
that it is strictly observing the guidelines and 
procedures mandated under the Data Privacy 
Act of 2012, its implementing rules and 
regulations, including issuances and circulars 
of the National Privacy Commission.

Legal Risk on the other hand is primarily 
managed by the bank’s legal services unit. 
It is managed and handled through strict 
observance legal risk measures, such as but 
not limited to: control of all contracts and 
contractual relations of the Bank; stringent 
review of all deeds, contracts, instruments, 
communications, and correspondences 
involving the bank; periodic review of existing 
contracts to ensure their continued statutory 
validity and conformity with applicable 

modifications or revisions under present laws; 
and standardization of terms and conditions 
to guarantee that the bank is fully protected 
from any potential liability arising from 
breach of contract.

BANK-WIDE RISK GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE & RISK  
MANAGEMENT PROCESS

When the Bank issues loans, there is a risk 
of borrower/client default. Banks can never 
avoid risk but we can only lessen the impact. 
Risk management plays a very important role 
in strengthening the capacity of the bank in 

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
Board Of Directors

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
Risk Oversight Committee

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
President

Chief Risk Officer

Risk Management Officer
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order to determine, understand and capitalize 
on new challenges and opportunities. 
Adequate risk management equips the bank 
to adopt and respond actively to change and 
uncertainty to be able to come up with more 
effective decision-making in order to assess, 
identify and manage risk to build trust in our 
clients.

RISK MANAGEMENT CULTURE AND 
PHILOSOPHY
AllBank identifies, understands, measures, 
monitors, and controls the different risks 
inherent in all aspects of its operation 
ensuring that the benefits of taking such risks 
are commensurate to the risks taken.  Risk 
management is everyone’s responsibility. 
AllBank commits to developing appropriate 
risk management strategies geared towards 
loss prevention or minimization to preserve 
capital in the short term, increase shareholder 
in the medium term and allocate capital across 
all risk-taking activities in the long term. 

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION AND 
RESPONSIBILITIES
The Board of Directors (BOD) is primarily 
responsible for approving and overseeing 

the implementation of the Bank’s strategic 
objectives, risk strategy, corporate 
governance, and values.

The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)’s 
core responsibilities are identification and 
evaluation of exposures, development of 
risk management strategies; overseeing the 
implementation of the risk management plan, 
and review and revision of the plan as needed. 
The Risk Oversight Committee plays a critical 
role because they are the one to advise the 
Board on the framework and policies for risk 
governance and overall risk management, 
covering all major risks such as credit risk, 
market risk, liquidity, and operational risk 
(including compliance risk), strategic and 
reputational risks, IT risks, etc.

The Risk Management Unit (RMU) is 
responsible for the establishment and 
implementation of the Risk Management 
process, policies, and procedures necessary to 
assist the ROC.

Risk-Taking Units (RTU) refer to all Bank 
personnel who have the ability and authority 
to commit the Bank to financial transactions.

Risk Management Framework
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Capital Adequacy
The Bank ensures that it operates within the regulatory capital framework prescribed by the BSP.  
For 2019 and 2020, the Bank remains compliant with the regulatory capital framework.

The table below shows the comparative capital and risk weightedd assets composition of the Bank  
and the corresponding Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) and Net Tier 1 ratio for the year’s ended 2019  
and 2020.

2020 2019

(Amounts in Thousand P)

Paid-up Common Stock  770,135  770,135 

Paid-up Perpetual and Non-cumulative

Preferred Stock  60,422  60,422 

Additional Paid-in Capital  116,891  116,891 

Retained Earnings and Surplus Reserves  148,000  114,687 

Undivided Profits  29,432  33,313 

TIER 1 CAPITAL  1,124,880  1,095,448 

Less: Deferred Tax Asset  29,518  23,334 

NET TIER 1 CAPITAL  1,095,362  1,072,114 

TIER 2 Capital General Loan Loss 

Provision 21,291  21,291 

Total Qualifying Capital  1,116,653  1,093,405 

Credit Risk Weighted Assets  3,404,349  2,750,985 

Operational Risk Weighted Assets  271,133  222,015 

Market Risk Weighted Assets

Total Risk Weighted Assets  3,675,482  2,973,000 

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 30% 38%

Net Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 30% 35%
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Modernizing  
the Institution 

AllBank harnesses dynamism while observing 
high standards in corporate governance to 
direct the Bank in creating the most value for 
our stakeholders.
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AllBank’s Corporate Governance framework 
was crafted to support the achievements of 
its corporate mission for the benefit of various 
stakeholders and it needs to continually evolve 
and adapt with the changes and demands of 
the times.  

The Bank’s Board of Directors is composed 
of five (5) Directors – two (2) Non-executive 
Directors who are familiar with the business 
and who are not part of the day-to-day 
business of the Bank’s management, two (2) 
Independent Directors whose responsibility is 
to exercise independent judgment on corporate 
affairs requiring the decision or approval of the 
Board, and one (1) Executive Director who is 
directly responsible for the management and 
implementation of policies and procedures, 
strategies and initiatives approved by the Board.

They are all qualified business professionals 
with the expertise and experience in directing 
the Bank’s strategic growth and path. The 
independent directors provide independent 
judgement, outside experience and objectivity.

Directors are elected every year during 
stockholder’s meeting from a list of nominees 
endorsed by the Corporate Governance 
Committee (CGC) and approved by the Board 
of Directors. The CGC screens the qualifications 
of the nominees and comes up with a final list of 
nominees. Succession or filling up of vacancies in 
the Board is addressed in the Bank’s By-Laws. 
Any vacancy in the Board of Directors, except 
removal or expiration of term, shall be filled 
by the remaining Directors if constituting a 
quorum, and the director or directors so chosen 
shall serve for the unexpired term.

The Board of Directors are entrusted to run the 
bank in a prudent and sound manner and that 
all stakeholders of the bank have the right to 

expect that the institution is being run so. The 
Board have primary responsibility of approving 
and overseeing the implementation of the 
strategic objective, risk strategies, corporate 
governance and values. They are also responsible 
for monitoring and overseeing the performance 
of senior management as the latter manages 
the Bank’s day-to-day affairs. 

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership 
in the Board of Directors and ensures effective 
functioning. While he encourages dissenting 
opinions, he ensures that a relationship of trust 
and respect is maintained within the Board of 
Directors. The chairman shall ensure that the 
meeting agenda focuses on strategic matters, 
including discussion on risk appetites and key 
governance concerns, ensure a sound decision-
making process, encourage and promote 
critical discussion, ensure that views can be 
expressed and discussed within the decision-
making process, ensure that members of the 
Board of Directors receive accurate, timely, 
and relevant information, ensure the conduct 
of proper orientation for first time directors 
and provide training opportunities for all 
directors; and ensure conduct of performance 
evaluation of the board of directors at least 
once a year. 

The Board of Directors are required to remain 
fit and proper during their term. They are 
expected to conduct fair business dealings 
and avoid conflicts of interest. The Directors 
must act honestly, in good faith and in the best 
interest of the Bank and its stakeholders. They 
are required to devote their time and attention 
necessary to properly discharge their duties 
and responsibilities and act judiciously at all 
times. They are also responsible to have a 
significant contribution in the decision-making 
process of the board and exercising independent 
judgement.   

Corporate Governance
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The attendance of each and every director for 
the 2020 Board and Committee meetings are as 
follows:

BOARD
Name of Directors Attended %
Lili B. Ramirez
Chairman

12 92.31%

Danilo D. Camacho
Non-executive Director

13 100%

Evelyn D. Guerrero
Independent Director

13 100%

Atty. Paul T. Salanga
Independent Director

11 100%

Atty. Leonardo A. Singson
Independent Director

2 100%

Jesus Vicente O. Garcia
Executive Director

13 100%

Total Meetings Held 13

Corporate Governance
Name of Directors Attended %
Danilo D. Camacho 13 100%
Evelyn D. Guerrero 13 100%
Atty. Paul T. Salanga 11 100%
Atty. Leonardo A. Singson 2 100%
Total Meetings Held 13

 Risk Oversight Committee
Name of Directors Attended %
Lili B. Ramirez 12 92.31%
Evelyn D. Guerrero 13 100%
Atty. Paul T. Salanga 11 100%
Atty. Leonardo A. Singson 2 100%
Total Meetings Held 13

 Audit Committee
Name of Directors Attended %
Lili B. Ramirez 12 92.31%
Evelyn D. Guerrero 13 100%
Atty. Paul T. Salanga 11 100%
Atty. Leonardo A. Singson 2 100%
Total Meetings Held 13

The Board of Directors shall be responsible 
for the appointment/selection of key 
members of senior management, heads of 
control functions and for the approval of a 
sound remuneration and other incentives 
policy for personnel.

The Chairman of the Board oversees the 
development, approves and monitors 
implementation of corporate governance 
policies and ensures that these policies 
are followed and periodically reviewed for 
ongoing improvement.

AML GOVERNANCE
As part of the Bank’s effort to ensure 
overall compliance with the provisions of 
the Anti-Money Laundering Act, the Bank 
has implemented “Know-Your-Customer” 
policies and procedures, wherein all 
business units are required to validate the 
true identity of the customer based on 
official and other reliable documents or 
records before accounts are opened or a 
business relationship is initiated. The Bank 
is also required to risk profile its clients, 
perform the corresponding due diligence 
procedures, monitor their accounts on 
a continuing basis and report covered 
and suspicious transactions as required. 
The Bank, through its Compliance Unit 
and Internal Audit Unit, measures the 
Bank’s overall compliance through the 
conduct of compliance testing and audit 
engagements, respectively.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
There are various committees that were created to assist and to help the Board in efficiently 
handling various tasks and in performing their respective mandates.

Corporate
Governance
Committee

Audit
Committee

Risk Oversight
Committee

Related Party
Transaction
Committee

Compliance 
Unit

Internal Audit  
Unit

Risk Management
Unit

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is responsible for 
providing independent oversight of the 
effectiveness and adequacy of internal 
controls, financial reporting, and risk 
management systems, compliance with 
relevant regulations, and internal and 
external audit activities.

The committee is composed of three (3) 
Non-Executive Directors, two (2) of whom 
are Independent Directors, including the 
Committee Chairman. All members have 
relevant background, knowledge, skills and/
or experience in the areas of accounting, 
banking and finance.

The committee meets on a monthly basis and 
is supported by the Internal Audit Unit (IAU).

During the year, the year the audit 
committee has approved and reviewed its 
own charter as well as the IAU’s Charter. 
It has also approved the amendments 
and revisions made to the IAU Manual of 
Operations as part of current enhancing IAU’s 

current mechanisms, practices, and standards 
in conducting its audits.

Moreover, the committee has authorized 
the implementation of the Internal Audit 
Plan after thoroughly reviewing IAU’s audit 
methodologies and scope, result of audit risk 
assessment and resource requirement and 
personnel development plans. Throughout the 
implementation, the Committee has monitored 
the status and progress of the internal 
audit plan and confirmed its corresponding 
accomplishment report.

As part of its function, the Committee reviewed 
Internal Audit reports and focused on high and 
medium risk areas that could impact the Bank’s 
overall operational and financial soundness. It 
also notes the quarterly exception monitoring 
reports to ensure prompt resolution of 
unresolved audit findings.

Furthermore, the Committee also discussed 
pertinent matters and responses related to the 
results of examination conducted by the Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas.

Corporate Governance

Board of 
Directors
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AUDIT COMMITTEE  
EVELYN D. GUERRERO CHAIRMAN
PAUL T. SALANGA
*resigned effective Oct. 2020

MEMBER

ATTY. LEONARDO A. SINGSON
*effective Nov. 2020

MEMBER

LILI B. RAMIREZ MEMBER

RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
The Risk Oversight Committee plays a critical 
role because they are the one to advice the 
Board on the framework and policies for risk 
governance and overall risk management, 
covering all major risks such as credit risk, 
market risk, liquidity and operational risk 
(including compliance risk), strategic and 
reputational risks, IT risks, etc.

It is composed of three (3) non-executive 
directors, two (2) of whom are independent 
directors, including the Committee 
Chairman. The members are needed in risk 
identification, risk mitigation and control. The 
Committee meets on a monthly basis and 
is supported by the Risk Management Unit 
(RMU).

During the year, the Committee conducted 
regular discussions on the Bank’s exposures 
to credit, market/liquidity and operational 
and reputational risks, reviewed amendments 
made on certain credit policies and guidelines, 
discussed both internal and BSP-mandated 
stress tests, noted and approved policies 
pertaining on information sharing policy in 
accordance with relevant and applicable 
standards.

RISK OVERSIGHT  
PAUL T. SALANGA
*resigned effective Oct. 2020

CHAIRMAN

ATTY. LEONARDO A. SINGSON
*effective Nov. 2020

CHAIRMAN

EVELYN D. GUERRERO MEMBER
LILI B. RAMIREZ MEMBER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Corporate Governance Committee is 
tasked to assist the Board in fulfilling its 
duties and responsibilities and monitoring the 

Bank’s adherence to the principle set forth 
in the Corporate Governance Manual.

The Committee is composed of three (3) 
Non-executive Directors, two (2) of whom 
are Independent Directors, including the 
Committee Chairman. The Committee 
meets on a regular basis and is supported by 
the Compliance Unit.

In 2020, the Committees continuously 
discussed new policies, amendments on 
relevant and current issues concerning 
Anti-Money Laundering, Combating the 
Financing of Terrorism & Countering 
Proliferation Financing (AML/CFT/CPF) 
Policies. Customer acceptance pertaining 
to acceptable IDs and guidelines on 
identifying beneficial ownership relative to 
Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing 
Prevention Program (MTPP) were included 
in the discussion and MTPP updating. The 
digitization of customer records and project 
developments were taken-up in compliance 
with Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) 
regulations. Continuous cascading and 
implementation of BSP issued Circulars, 
Circular Letters and Memoranda including 
PDIC, BIR AMLC and SEC issued regulations 
are being discussed by the Committee, 
highlighting the important provisions by the 
Chief Compliance Officer. The committee 
religiously discussed the AML updates 
pertaining to Covered Transaction Reports 
and Suspicious Transactions Reports of the 
business units and branches. The Committee 
consistently discussed the status of the 
Report of Examination (ROE) and monitors 
compliance and provide directives and 
guidance. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
PAUL T. SALANGA
*resigned effective Oct. 2020

CHAIRMAN

ATTY. LEONARDO A. 
SINGSON
*effective Nov. 2020

CHAIRMAN

EVELYN D. GUERRERO MEMBER

DANILO D. CAMACHO MEMBER
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS COMMITTEE 
All RPTs of the Bank are considered material, 
in accordance with the Bank’s internal limit, 
are endorsed by the Committee to the Board 
of Directors for approval and submitted for 
confirmation by the majority vote of the 
stockholders in the annual stockholder’s meeting.

AllBank, through its Board of Directors, 
recognizes that transactions between and 
among related parties create financial, 
commercial, and economic benefits to the Bank, 
its shareholders, depositors, creditors, suppliers, 
vendors, and other stakeholders. In this regard, 
Related Party Transactions are generally 
allowed provided, that these are done using 
Arm’s Length Principle (ALP).

The RPT Com shall be composed of at least 
three (3) members of the Board, two (2) of 
whom shall be Independent Directors (IDs), 
including the Chairperson. The RPT Com shall 
at all times be composed of IDs and Non-
Executive Directors, with IDs comprising the 
majority. In case a member has conflict of 
interest in a particular RPT, he should refrain 
from evaluating that particular transaction. The 
Chief Compliance Officer, Chief Risk Officer, 
Chief Internal Auditor, or Corporate Governance 
Officer, shall act as Resource Persons in the said 
Committee.

The attendance of each and every director for the 
2020 RPT Committee meetings are as follows:

RPT Committee
Name of Directors Attended %
Evelyn D. Guerrero
Independent Director

Committee 
Chairman

2 100%

Danilo D. Camacho
Non-executive 
Director

Member 2 100%

Atty. Paul T. Salanga
Independent Director

Member 1 100%

Atty. Leonardo A. 
Singson
Independent Director

Member 1 100%

Total Meetings Held 2

The RPT Com shall review its performance on 
an annual basis by way of self-assessment. 
The Board of Directors shall likewise review the 
effectiveness and composition of the RPT Com 
on an annual basis. 

The material related party transaction entered by 
the Bank as of December 31, 2020 are as follows:
• Loans to various related parties in the 

aggregate amount of P478,593M with an 
outstanding balance as of December 31, 2020 
of P407,718M, interest ranging from 8.25% to 
9.0%, maturity of 360 days to 60 months and 
mostly for use as working capital.

• Lease rentals to various related parties in the 
aggregate amount of P14.29M

SELECTION PROCESS FOR THE 
BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The Bank accepts nomination and election of 
directors to the Board from the shareholders. 
The candidates are evaluated based on the 
qualifications provided under the MORB. 

Candidates for the Senior Management 
positions are carefully screened based on 
their qualifications and are properly vetted. 
Appointments of Senior Officers require the 
approval and the confirmation of the Board. For 
positions that needs regulatory approval and 
confirmation, the Bank submits to the Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) for approval and 
confirmation. 

Head Count
Rank & File 44
Officers 69
Total 113

REMUNERATION & INCENTIVE 
POLICY
The Bank’s Directors, Officers and Employees 
are provided with an industry-competitive 
compensation package to attract, motivate, and 
retain highly qualified people. 

Corporate Governance

34 AllBank | Annual Report 2020



The remuneration for the members of the Board 
of Directors is based on experience, professional 
background and level of responsibilities. The 
members of the Board receive a monthly per 
diem and other compensation and benefits for 
their services as Directors. 

The compensation package of the Officers and 
Employees is based on position and rank. It is 
composed of guaranteed compensation inclusive 
of statutory and Bank-initiated bonuses and other 
monetary and non-monetary benefits. The Bank 
also has a Fringe Benefit Policy for its employees. 

The basis for fixing the remuneration and salary 
scale is reviewed annually and amended when 
necessary.

The Bank reviews on an annual basis the 
performance of its workforce and rewards its 
deserving employees through a performance-
based merit increase program and promotions. 
The Board of Directors regularly monitors and 
assess the performance of the Management 
team and heads of control functions based on 
the approved performance standards.

RETIREMENT PROGRAM
The Bank established its Retirement Plan with 
United Coconut Planters Bank (UCPB) Trust 
Banking Group. It is a noncontributory plan 
covering all regular full-time employees. The 
Normal Retirement Date of a Member shall 
be the first day of the month coincident with 
or next following his sixtieth (60th) birthday 
provided he has served the Company for at least 
five (5) years of Credited Service.  The Member’s 
Normal Retirement Benefit shall be a sum equal 
to One (1) month pay for every year of Credited 
Service in accordance with the Retirement Pay 
Law (Republic Act No. 7641).

Note that the retirement benefit of a Member 
who has rendered at least ten (10) years of 
Credited Service and is at least age fifty (50) 
shall be tax exempt in accordance with Republic 
Act. No.4917.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT
The Directors’ performances are assessed on 
a yearly basis through self-evaluation and peer 
assessments. The results of such assessments 
are disclosed in a board meeting. The evaluation 
process are as follows:

1. Before the annual stockholders’ meeting, the 
process starts with the Corporate Governance 
Committee asking the Directors to complete 
the board self-assessment and evaluation of 
committee performance forms. 

2. The Chair of the Corporate Governance 
Committee receives the accomplished 
questionnaires on a confidential basis and 
summarizes the results. The Chair of the 
Corporate Governance Committee may have 
discussions with individual directors where 
clarification or interpretation is required.

3. The Chair of the Corporate Governance 
Committee develops a report for the Corporate 
Governance Committee. The Corporate 
Governance Committee reviews the 
questionnaire results and develops 
recommendations for consideration of the Board.

4. The Board reviews the questionnaire results 
and the Corporate Governance Committee’s 
recommendations and takes any necessary 
action.

For the Management Team, the members of 
the Management Team are assessed through 
the Bank’s annual performance management 
system as facilitated by the Human Resources 
Department. At the beginning of each year, 
ManCom members submit their strategic plans  
for the year, subject for review and approval of  
the President and for presentation to the Board  
of Directors.

There is a monthly update on the status of the 
strategic plans. By January of the following year, 
the Mancom submits self-rating for the previous 
year’s performance for review and approval of 
the President. Once finalized, the Performance 
Appraisal forms are signed by the President and 
acknowledged by the Mancom member. 
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SUCCESSION PLANNING POLICY
The Bank has adopted a succession plan for its 
Board of Directors (BOD), Senior Management 
and employees that will ensure a smooth 
transition and continuity of business operations 
in the event of vacancies. The Chairman of 
Board oversees the process of adopting a policy 
on retirement for directors and officers, as part 
of the succession plan, to promote dynamism 
and avoid perpetuation in power.

The Directors with the exception of the 
Independent Directors may remain on the Board 
for as long as they are mentally and physically fit 
for the position and able to discharge their duties 
pursuant to the regulatory requirements of the 
Bank. The Independent Directors are covered by 
the maximum term limits imposed. The general 
management of the Bank shall be vested in a 
board of five (5) directors who shall be elected 
annually by the stockholders and who shall 
serve until the election and qualification of their 
successors. Any vacancy in the Board of Directors 
except removal or expiration of term shall be 
filled by the remaining Directors if constituting a 
quorum, and the director or directors so chosen 
shall serve for the unexpired term. 

DIVIDEND POLICY
The amount of surplus funds available for 
dividend declaration is determined on the 
basis of regulatory net worth after considering 
certain adjustments. The Bank’s lead regulator, 
the BSP sets and monitors capital requirements 
of the Bank.

The dividend shall only be declared in such time 
or times and in such percentage as the Board of 
Directors may deem appropriate. No dividend 
shall be declared that will impair the capital of 
the Bank. For 2020, no dividends were declared 
by the Bank.  

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All material Related Party Transactions (RPT) 
are being reported to the Related Party 

Transaction Committee (RPTCOM) to ensure 
transactions are handled in a sound and 
prudent manner, with integrity, being done using 
Arm’s Length Principle and in compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations to protect the 
interest of the depositors and stakeholders. 

The RPT Com shall be composed of at least 
three (3) members of the Board, two (2) of 
whom shall be Independent Directors (IDs), 
including the Chairperson. The RPT Com shall 
at all times be composed of IDs and Non-
Executive Directors, with IDs comprising the 
majority. In case a member has conflict of 
interest in a particular RPT, he should refrain 
from evaluating that particular transaction. The 
Chief Compliance Officer, Chief Risk Officer, 
Chief Internal Auditor, or Corporate Governance 
Officer, shall act as Resource Persons in the said 
Committee.

The RPT Com shall: 
• Evaluate on an ongoing basis existing 

relation between and among businesses 
and counterparties to ensure that all related 
parties are continuously identified; RPTs 
are monitored and subsequent changes 
in relationships with counterparties (from 
non-related to related and vice versa) are 
captured. Related parties, RPTs and changes in 
relationships shall be reflected in the relevant 
reports to the Board and regulators. 

• Evaluate all material RPTs to ensure that the 
terms are no less favorable than the terms 
generally available to an unrelated third 
party under the same circumstances and 
that no corporate or business resources of 
the Bank are misappropriated or misapplied, 
and to determine any potential reputational 
risk issues that may arise as a result of 
or in connection with the transactions. In 
evaluating RPTs, the RPT Com shall take into 
account the following: 

o The related party’s relationship to the Bank 
and interest in the transaction. 

Corporate Governance
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o The material facts of the proposed RPT,
including the proposed aggregate value of
such transaction.

o The benefits to the Bank of the proposed
RPT.

o The availability of other sources of
comparable products or services, and

o An assessment of whether the proposed
RPT is on terms and conditions that are
comparable to the terms generally available
to an unrelated party under similar
circumstances. The Bank shall constitute
an effective price discovery system and
exercised due diligence in determining a fair
price for RPTs, if applicable.

o Any renewal or changes in terms and
conditions shall be reviewed, recommended
and endorsed by the RPT Com to the Board.

o The RPT Com shall assist the Board
in assessing Non-Material RPTs after
having been evaluated by the appropriate
Management Committee.

• All RPTs that are considered material based on
the Bank’s internal policies shall be endorsed
by the RPT Committee to the Board for
approval.

• The RPT Com shall ensure that appropriate
public disclosures are made, and/or
information is provided to regulators, relating
to the Bank’s RPT exposures, policies on
conflicts of interest and potential conflicts
of interest. The disclosure shall include
information on the approach to managing
material conflicts of interest that are
inconsistent with such policies; and conflicts
that could arise as a result of the Bank’s
affiliation or transactions with other related
parties. All final decisions by the Board on
material RPTs must be disclosed to the
stockholders at the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting (ASM) and reflect in the minutes
thereof, the nature, terms, conditions, original
and outstanding individual and aggregate
balances, justification and other details that
would allow the stockholders to make an

informed judgment as to the reasonableness 
of the RPT. All material RPTs and write-offs 
of material exposures shall be submitted 
for confirmation by majority vote of the 
Stockholders at the Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting (ASM).

• The RPT Com shall report to the Board on a 
regular basis or as the need arises, the status 
and aggregate exposures to each related party 
as well as the total amount of exposures to all 
related parties.

• The RPT Com shall ensure that transactions 
with related parties, including write-off of 
exposures, are subject to periodic independent 
review or audit process.

• The RPT Com shall oversee the implementation 
of the system for identifying, monitoring, 
measuring, controlling, and reporting RPTs, 
including the periodic review of RPT policies 
and procedures.

• The RPT Com shall assist the Board
in establishing a system to identify and monitor 
RPTs, continuously review existing relationships 
between business/counterparties and identify/
measure and control risks arising from RPTs.

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION 
The Bank’s internal controls and transparency 
are conducted by Independent Units composed 
of Internal Audit Unit (IAU) and Compliance 
Unit (CU), which directly report to the Audit 
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee 
and Risk Management Unit, which directly 
report to Risk Oversight Committee (ROC): 

• The Internal Audit Unit shall conduct a periodic
formal review of the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system and internal controls to assess
consistency with the board-approved policies
and procedures. The result of the Audit
review shall be directly reported to the Audit
Committee (AC).

• The Compliance Unit shall conduct compliance
testing and ensure that the Bank complies
with relevant rules and regulations and
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is informed of regulatory developments 
affecting all areas of the bank. The CU shall 
also ensure that MTPP and RPT policy is 
kept updated and effectively implemented 
throughout the Bank. 

• The Risk Management Unit (RMU) shall 
conduct a periodic review on the effectiveness 
of the Bank’s risk management program, 
whether decisions are consistent with the 
board approved policies on risk appetite, 
tolerance and the effectiveness of the 
corresponding risk mitigation measure. The 
Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) is being 
apprise with the results of assessment and 
monitoring conducted by RMU.

• The Audit Committee, Corporate Governance 
Committee and Risk Oversight Committee 
conduct monthly meetings and special 
meetings to ensure that the directions are 
consistent and aligned with the strategic 
objectives of the Bank and in compliance 
with BSP and other Government regulatory 
agencies. 

STRUCTURE OF COMPLIANCE 
FUNCTION
Compliance starts at the top. It will be most 
effective in corporate culture that emphasizes 
standards of honesty and integrity which the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management 
lead by example. It concerns everyone within 
the Bank and should be viewed as an integral 
part of the Bank’s business activities. A bank 
should hold itself to the highest standards when 
carrying on business, and at all times strive to 
observe the spirit as well as the letter of the law. 
Failure to consider the impact of its actions on 
its shareholders, customers, employees, and the 
market may result in significant adverse publicly 
and reputational damage, even if no law has 
been broken.

The Bank develop and implement a compliance 
system that will provide reasonable assurance 
that the Bank and its employees comply and 
adhere with relevant banking and corporate 

laws, regulations, rules and standards in order to 
promote safe and sound banking operations.

The Bank’s Compliance Unit spearheads the 
Bank’s Compliance Risk Framework. Compliance 
Unit has a formal status on the organization 
that directly reports to the Corporate 
Governance Committee and the Board.

The Compliance Unit facilitates effective 
management of compliance risk by:
• Advising the Board of Directors and Senior 

Management on relevant laws, rules and 
standards, including keeping them informed 
on development in the area;

• Apprising the personnel of the Bank on 
compliance issues, and acting as a contact 
point within the Bank for compliance queries 
from Bank personnel.

• Establishing written guidance to staff on the 
appropriate implementation of laws, rules, 
and standards through policies and procedures 
and other documents such as compliance 
manuals, internal codes of conduct and 
practices guidelines;

• Identifying, documenting and assessing the 
compliance risks associated with the Bank’s 
business activities, including new products and 
business units;

• Assessing the appropriateness of the Bank’s 
compliance procedures and guidelines, 
promptly following up any identified 
deficiencies, and where necessary, formulated 
proposals for amendments;

• Ensuring daily covered transactions reports 
and suspicious transactions reports are 
reported on a timely manner to the AMLC.

• Conducting compliance testing; and
• Maintaining constructive working relationship 

with the BSP and other regulators.

In 2020, the Bank continued to enhance and 
strengthened its compliance functions by 
instilling in its system the applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, of the BSP, AMLC and 
other regulatory bodies. The Compliance 

Structure of Compliance Function
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ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING STRUCTURE OF COMPLIANCE UNIT
The Chief Compliance Officer functionally reports to the board of directors thru the Corporate 
Governance Committee and administratively to the President.

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.
Board of Directors

Chief Compliance  
Officer

Compliance Officer

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.
Corporate Governance Committee

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.
President

The Chief Compliance Officer 
directly reports to the Corporate 
Governance Committee of the 
Board and administratively 
reports to the President.

Compliance Officer directly 
reports to the Chief 
Compliance Officer.

Unit continues to improve the compliance 
awareness among officers and staff through 
timely cascading of regulatory issuances. The 
Compliance Unit has strengthened also the 
watchlist of new customers for onboarding or 
opening of accounts. Branches are properly 
guided to identify new customers as high 
risk, persons occupying sensitive positions in 
government or politically exposed person. New 
corporate accounts are also verified through 
sanction screening against SEC database. The 
Compliance Unit, also performs an Independent 
Compliance Testing (ICT) of branches to test 

the effectiveness of AML program to prevent 
the risks of money laundering, terrorist financing 
and proliferation financing.  In this year, the 
Compliance Unit launched the Joint Compliance 
and Operations Clinic in collaboration with 
Branch Operations and Support Department 
(BOSD), this is to address, discuss, clarify and 
correct noted Compliance Issues, common 
exceptions in ICT and recent BSP exceptions 
related to branch operations as well as other 
areas for improvements and clarifications of 
branches. 
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STRUCTURE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
FUNCTION
To provide AllBank with an independent, 
objective assurance and consulting services 
designed to add value and help improve the 
Bank’s Internal Control Process, such as 
Operational Controls, Financial Reporting 
Controls, Information Technology Security 
and Controls, and highlights improvement 
opportunities for an enhanced and better 
operational efficiency.  It helps AllBank 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
internal/external control and governance 
processes. 

The IAU must be independent and the internal 
auditors must be objective in performing 
their work.  IAU must be free to report audit 
results, findings, opinions, assessments and 
other information to the appropriate level of 
Management. 

To provide for independence of IAU and 
objectivity of its personnel, the Internal Audit 
Officers/Associates report to the Internal Audit 
Unit Head, who reports functionally to the 
Audit Committee and administratively to the 
President, as set forth in his authority.  

The Internal Audit Unit Head and the 
Internal Audit Officers/Associates, at all 
times, should exhibit the highest level of 
professional objectivity in the conduct of their 
engagements, make a balanced assessment 
of all relevant circumstances and should not 
be unduly influenced by their own interests or 
by others in forming judgments.  They should 
not engage or participate in activities or 
relationships that may be in conflict with the 
interests of the Bank.  

The Internal Audit Unit Head is authorized to 
lead a comprehensive risk-based audit program 
of all the Bank’s business units.  IAU shall have 
the authority to access all relevant record, 
documents, personnel and physical properties of 
the Bank’s operating units. 

The IAU determines whether the Bank’s network 
of risk management, control and governance 
processes, as designed and represented by 
Management, is adequate and functioning in a 
manner to ensure:
• Risks are appropriately identified and managed;
• Interaction with the various governance groups 

occurs as needed;
• Significant financial, managerial, and operating 

information is accurate, reliable and timely;
• Employees’ actions are in compliance with 

policies, standards, procedures, and applicable 
laws and regulations;

• Resources are acquired economically, used 
efficiently, and adequately protected;

• Programs, plans and objectives are achieved;
• Quality and continuous improvement are 

fostered in the Bank’s control process; and 
• Significant legislative or regulatory issues 

impacting the Bank are recognized and 
addressed appropriately.  

The IAU shall be responsible in:
• Ensuring that the operations of all business 

units of AllBank are periodically reviewed. 
• Maintaining an effective and updated audit 

program that supports the Bank’s objectives.
• Investigating operational lapses, fraud and/or 

abuse, as referred to the IAU for investigation.
• Communicating to the appropriate level of 

management opportunities for improving 
management control, profitability, and the 
Bank’s image

• Performing other audit procedures as needed in 
carrying out the Internal Audit function.

Structure of Internal Audit Function
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IAU may also perform consulting services, with full disclosure in the reporting process, as long 
as these are consistent with the mission/purpose of IAU and would not necessarily impair IAU’s 
objectivity and without assuming Management’s responsibility.  Such consulting services will 
generally be related to assessing the impact of changes being considered or implemented in the 
AllBank’s risk management, control and governance processes. 

The IAU will be guided by and strive to meet the International Standards for the Professional Practice 
of Internal Auditing of the Institute of Internal Auditors.  Also, in line with carrying IAU’s function, 
it shall likewise adhere to the internal audit standards set forth by Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 
(Section185 and 186 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks, Circular No. 499, Series of 2005, 
amended by Circular No. 871, Series of 2015), including subsequent amendments thereto, Code of 
Professional Ethics for CPAs, ODB Internal Audit Code of Ethics, AllBank Internal Audit Operations 
Manual and other supplemental standards issued by regulatory authorities/government agencies.

ORGANIZATION & REPORTING STRUCTURE OF INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT 

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.

Board of Directors

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.

Audit Committee

Corporate AuditorCorporate and Branch Auditor Information Technology Auditor

Internal Audit Head

AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.
President
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The Bank acknowledges the vital role of 
consumers in the survival of a business, and 
therefore puts the consumers welfare on top 
of the Bank’s priorities. In its commitment to 
protect the interest of financial consumers 
and institutionalize the responsibilities of 
all stakeholders, the Bank has established a 
Consumer Protection Risk Management System 
(CPRMS) guidelines that its employees must 
strictly adhere to, especially all customer-facing 
employees, to deliver the required financial 
consumer protection and required level of fair 
treatment, disclosure, and transparency within 
the prescribed turn-around-time of the Bank.

The CPRMS guidelines are compliant with the 
Bank’s internal policies and with guidelines set 
by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and 
shall be reviewed periodically and kept up to 
date as these serve as reference for employees 
in their day-to-day activities in addressing, 
resolving, and reporting customer complaints 
and queries.

As indicated in the Bank’s Consumer Protection 
Risk Management System, employees should 
ensure that appropriate management control 
measures are in place. They should also take 
reasonable steps to ensure that in handling 
complaints/requests, they: i) Identify and 
remedy any recurring or systematic problem, 
and ii) Identify weaknesses in the Bank’s 
internal control procedure or process. This may 
be done by:

1. Analyzing complaints/requests data;
2. Analyzing causes of complaints/requests;
3. Considering whether such identified 

weaknesses may also affect other processes 
or products, including those not directly 
complained of/requested; and

4. Correctly, whether reasonable to do so, 
such causes taking into consideration the 
concomitant costs and other resources.

The Board develops and maintain a sound 
Consumer Protection Risk Management System 
that is integrated into the overall framework 
of the entire product and service life-cycle. 
It also oversees the implementation of the 
Bank’s consumer protection policies as well 
as the mechanism to ensure compliance with 
said policies. The Board also monitors and 
oversees the performance of the Management 
in managing day-to-day consumer protection 
activities of the Bank. The Board delegates 
other duties and responsibilities to the 
Management for the purpose of compliance 
with BSP-prescribed and the Bank’s own 
Consumer Protection Framework.

It is the Management’s duty to implement 
the consumer protection policies as approved 
by the Board. They are the one in charge of 
managing the day-to-day activities of the Bank 
related to consumer protection. It also reviews 
the effectiveness of the CPRMS, including how 
findings are reported and whether the audit 
mechanisms in place enable adequate oversight. 
It also ensures that CPRMS weaknesses are 
addressed and corrective actions are taken in a 
timely manner.

The Consumer Assistance Officer is responsible 
for handling consumer concerns. The Consumer 
Assistance Officer in the branches and head 
office shall submit complaints report which 
will be consolidated and reported to the Board 
and the Management. Reports or unresolved 
complaints beyond the agreed timeline in 
processing complaints shall be discussed in the 
Management Committee on a monthly basis.

Customer Assistance such as email, phone 
number, website, and social media are made 
available to customers so they can reach out the 
Bank regarding their concerns.

Consumer Protection Practices
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In line with the Corporate Governance requirements, the Members of the board and the 
Management are required to attend trainings and seminars from Accredited Training Providers.

The Bank is committed to continuously broaden the knowledge and awareness of all its employees 
on the latest best practices in the banking industry. All the employees are regularly undergoing 
several trainings which includes Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorist Financing Program. The 
Management is confident that allotting resources for training improves the morale and performance 
of its workforce. Conducting Trainings and Seminars also serves a way for Management to ensure 
that all the employees continuously possesses the qualifications and capabilities needed for their 
respective positions.

AllBank’s Board of Directors, Senior Management, and employees underwent the following  
trainings & seminars:

TRAININGS
February 22, 2020
June 27, 2020
July 18, 2020
October 15, 2020

Money Laundering & Terrorist Financing Prevention Program 
(MTPP) For Banks 

July 4, 2020 Dynamic Branch Banking Leadership
July, 11, 2020 Strategic Account Acquisition for Bank Managers
October 14, 2020 Customer Service Excellence Training
October 23, 2020 Related Party Transactions 
September 7-10, 2020 AML/CFT/CPF (BSP Cir. No. 1022) For Senior Management
December 17-20, 2020 Branch Banking Audits 1: The Branch Banking Business 

Objectives, Risks, Controls and The Related Audit Strategy
December 5 & 12, 2020 Establishing, Maintaining and Auditing Internal Controls 
November 17-18, 2020 Accounting for Non-Accountants with Financial Statement 

Analysis
July 25, 2020 Branch Banking Audits: How to Audit the Branch Banking 

Sales and Service Operations and Their AML Components
November 20, 2020 CTB-BSP Virtual Training Program on Internal Audit 
August 14, 2020 Compliance Framework
March 10, 2020 Baiphil 8th General Membership Meeting & Executive 

Learning Series
May 13-20, 2020 IT Security in Banking Operations
November 28, 2020 Joint BOSD and Compliance Clinic

Trainings & Seminars
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STOCKHOLDER’S INFORMATION
Stockholders as of April 2021 owning more than 20% of voting shares are all Filipino corporations,  
as follows:

Stockholders % of Subscribed Capital Stock
Ultimate Holdings, Inc. 39.91%

Infra Holdings Corp. 19.98%

Prescription Holdings Limited, Inc. 19.98%

Links Holdings & Properties 19.91%
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Leading the 
Transformation

Headed by forward-looking leaders, AllBank 
moves forward to accomplish our mission  
and vision.
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Board of 
Directors

LILI B. RAMIREZ
Chairperson

JESUS VICENTE O. GARCIA
President, Executive Director

DANILO D. CAMACHO
Vice Chairperson
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EVELYN D. GUERRERO
Independent Director

ATTY. ARBIN OMAR P. CARIÑO
Corporate Secretary

ATTY. PAUL T. SALANGA
Independent Director

ATTY. LEONARDO A. SINGSON
Independent Director

*effective October 31, 2020

*resigned effective October 31, 2020
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LILI B. RAMIREZ
Chairperson, Non-Executive
Years as director: 13 years
Nationality: Filipino
No. and % of Shares Held: 3(0%)
Education:  

- A.B. Economics, Maryknoll College
- MBA, De La Salle University

Other Previous Positions Held: 
- Former Executive Vice President, RCBC 

Savings Bank
- Former Executive Vice President & Managing 

Director, Optimum Development Bank 
- Former Trustee, Home Development Mutual 

Fund
- Former Senior Vice President, Development 

Bank of the Philippines
- Former Director, Premier Development Bank
- Former Director, Asiatrust Bank

JESUS VICENTE O. GARCIA
President, Executive Director
Years as director: 2 years
Nationality : Filipino
No. and % of Shares Held : 1(0%)
Education:

- BS Commerce, Assumption College of 
Pampanga

Other Previous Positions Held:
- Former Executive Vice President, Chief 

Operating Officer, AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc.
- Former Executive Vice President, Chief 

Operating  Officer & Head of Branch Banking 
Group, CityState Savings Bank

- Former Executive Vice President, Officer-In-
Charge, Philippine Veterans Bank

- Former Executive Vice President, Head of  
Institutional Banking Group and Branch 
Banking Group, Philippine Veterans Bank

- Former First Vice President, Head of Branch  
Banking Group & Area Head, Asiatrust Bank

- Former Director and Former Chairman of 
Audit Committee, Bancnet, Inc.

- Former Head of Advertising, Sales, & MOB, 
Pan Asia Bank

- Former Area Head & Branch Manager, 
UnionBank

DANILO D. CAMACHO
Vice Chairperson, Non-Executive
Years as director: 13 years
Nationality : Filipino
No. and % of Shares Held : 1(0%)
Education: 

- A.B. Public Administration, University of the 
Philippines

Other Current Positions:
- Trustee, PAREF Northfield School Other 

Previous Positions Held:
- Former Chairman, Rural Bank of Plaridel
- Former, First Vice President, Export & 

Industry Bank
- Former Senior Vice President, Ayala Life 

Insurance
- Former Senior Vice President, Trust 

International Paper
- Former Senior Vice President, Development 

Bank of the Philippines
- Former Vice President, PCI Bank
- Former Manager, Citibank 

EVELYN D. GUERRERO
Independent Director
Years as director: 13 years
Nationality : Filipino
No. and % of Shares Held : 1(0%)
Education:

- B.S. Commerce Major in Management and 
Finance, Sta. Isabel College

Other Previous Positions Held:
- Former Independent Director, Rural Bank of 

Plaridel
- Former First Vice President-Investment 

Banking III Head, Development Bank of the 
Philippines

- Former Senior Vice President-Investment Unit 
Head, Development Bank of the Philippines

Board of Directors Profiles
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ATTY. LEONARDO A. SINGSON
Independent Director – effective November 2020
Years as director: 1 year
Nationality : Filipino
No. and % of Shares Held : 1(0%)
Education:
 - B.A. Public Administration, UP Diliman
 - Bachelor of Law, UP Diliman
Other Current Position:

- Of Counsel, Betita Cabilao Casuela 
Sarmiento

- Legal Consultant, GNPower Ltd. Co.
Other Previous Positions Held:

- Partner, Villaraza & Angangco
- Senior Associate, SGV & Co.

ATTY. PAUL T. SALANGA  
Independent Director – *resigned effective 
October 31, 2020
Years as director: 10 years
Nationality: Filipino
No. of Shares Held : 2(0%)
Education: 

- A.B. Philosophy, Ateneo de Manila University
- Juris Doctor, Ateneo de Manila University

Other Current Positions:
- Partner, Picazo Buyco Tan Fider & Santos 

Law Offices
- Assistant Corporate Secretary, Manila North  

Harbour Port, Inc.
- Corporate Secretary, Dolmar Real Estate  

Development Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, Prime Metro BMD Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, Prime Metro Power 

Holdings Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, Prime Metroline 

Infrastructure Holdings Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, Aviation Concepts 

Technical Services, Inc.
- Corporate Secretary, Alsons Thermal Energy 

Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, Sarangani Energy Corp.
- Corporate Secretary, San Ramon Power, Inc.
- Corporate Secretary, Aces Technical Services 

Corp.

ATTY. ARBIN OMAR P. CARIÑO
Corporate Secretary
Nationality : Filipino
Education:

- B.S. Chemistry and B.S. Education Major in 
Physics and Math (Double Degree), De La 
Salle University

- Bachelor’s Degree in Law, San Beda College
Other Current Positions:

- Legal Counsel, Vista Land & Lifescape, Inc.
Other Previous Positions Held:

- Former Senior Associate, Kapunan Lotilla 
Garcia & Castillo Law Office

- Former Associate, Bunag & Lotilla Law 
Office.
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The Management 

JESUS VICENTE O. GARCIA
President, Executive Director

FRITZIE V. LOAYON
Chief Finance Officer

DIGNA G. SAMONTE
Chief Technology Officer

LIZA MARIE D. TOLENTINO 
Loans Operations Head

CRIZZAN C. GALVEZ
Branch Operations Head

LENIE M. TAOTAO
Commercial & Consumer Lending 

Group Head
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OVERSIGHTS:

MICHAEL ANGELO A. AGUSTIN
Clearing Operations Head

ATTY. CARLOS F. ROMULO
Legal Counsel

RUBY L. DOLLISON
Credit & Control Officer

LOVELY N. PLARISAN
Treasury Officer

ISAGANI A. SUAREZ JR.
Security Officer

BENINA D. MAYORES
Corporate Planning Officer

EDUARD R. ATIENZA
Compliance Officer

JAMES RYAN A. AYCOCHO
Risk Management Officer

VINCENT A PALICTE
Internal Audit Head
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Key Officers of the Bank

• Executive Director since 2019
• Former Executive Vice President, 

Chief Operating Officer, AllBank 
(A Thrift Bank), Inc.

• Former Executive Vice President, 
Chief Operating Officer & 
Head of Branch Banking Group, 
CityState Savings Bank

• Former Executive Vice President, 
Officer-In-Charge, Philippine 
Veterans Bank

• Former Executive Vice President, 
Head of Institutional Banking 
Group and Branch Banking 
Group, Philippine Veterans Bank

• Former First Vice President, 
Head of Branch Banking Group & 
Area Head, Asiatrust Bank

• Former Director and Former 
Chairman of Audit Committee, 
Bancnet, Inc.

• Former Head of Advertising, 
Sales, & MOB, Pan Asia Bank

• Former Area Head & Branch 
Manager, UnionBank

EDUCATION:
• BS Commerce, Assumption 

College of Pampanga

• Certified Public Accountant
• Former Chief Audit Executive, 

Vista Land & Lifescapes, Inc.
• Former Chief Finance Officer, 

Vista Land & Leisure Club
• Former Chief Accountant/ 

Financial Head, Vista Land & 
Lifescapes, Inc. Parent Co.

EDUCATION:
• MBA, De La Salle Graduate 

School of Business (with 
distinction)

• BS Accountancy, De La Salle 
University-Manila

• Former IT Head, Golden Haven 
Memorial, Inc.

• Former IT Head, Globalland 
Property Management, Inc.

• Former IT Head, Masterpiece 
Asia Properties, Inc.

• Former Functional Head, 
Mandalay Resources Corp.

• Former IT Head, Crown Asia 
Properties, Inc.

• Former IT Head, Household 
Development Corp.

EDUCATION:
• Bachelor in Accounting, 

Polytechnic University of the 
Philippines

FRITZIE V. LOAYON
Chief Finance Officer
(Filipino)

DIGNA G. SAMONTE
Chief Technology Officer
(Filipino)

JESUS VICENTE O. GARCIA 
President, Executive Director
(Filipino)
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• Former Concurrent Business 
Manager & Area Head, 
CityState Savings Bank

• Former Business Manager, 
CityState Savings Bank

• Former Branch Manager, 
Philippine Veterans Bank

• Former Branch Service Head 
and Loans Officer, Philippine 
Veterans Bank

EDUCATION:
• BS Commerce Major in Banking 

& Finance, St. Louis University-
Baguio City

• Former Admin Supervisor, 
Communities Iloilo, Inc.

• Former Admin Supervisor, 
Communities Bulacan, Inc.

• Former Admin Supervisor, 
Communities Batangas, Inc.

• Former Admin Supervisor, Vista 
Residence, Inc.

• Former Account Officer, Vista 
Residence, Inc,

EDUCATION:
• BA Public Administration, 

University of the Philippines – 
Diliman

• Former Loans Admin. Head, 
AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 

• Former Senior Associate – 
Central Operations, Real Estate 
Division, RCBC Savings Bank

• Former Loans Associate – 
Mortgage Banking Group, 
Capitol Development Bank

EDUCATION:
• Bachelor of Computer Data 

Processing and Management, 
Polytechnic University of the 
Philippines.

CRIZZAN C. GALVEZ
Branch Operation Head
(Filipino)

LENIE M. TAOTAO
Commercial & Consumer 
Lending Group Head (Filipino)

LIZA MARIE D. TOLENTINO
Loans Operations Head
(Filipino)
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Branch Managers

KEVIN C. CARANDANG
ALABANG

MA. CARMINA C. MAGPANTAY
BACOOR-NOMO

ERWINA ROSE R. SANCHEZ
BATAAN

 RUTH M. GALINGAN
DASMARINAS

JENNIFER A. CORTEZ
GENERAL TRIAS

AMELITA M. AVENDANO
GUIGUINTO

JUNIE M. CALMERIN
IMUS

ANALYN A. CASTADA
KAWIT

ZENY P. ABELO
LAS PINAS
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GLENLYN Z. NAVARRO
MAIN-SHAW

ANNA RHODA C. AMPON
MALOLOS

JOEL G. BAUTISTA
MOLINO

MA. BEATA P. LARIN
PAMPANGA

MA. THERESA R. PALOMARES
SAN JOSE DEL MONTE

ANGELICA M. MOJICA
STA. ROSA

JONATHAN I. BALLESTEROS
TAGUIG

MARIA MELISSA U. LIM
TANZA
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DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

• Regular Savings Account – Savings without 
the fuss and frills 

• ATM Savings – Easily access your money 
anytime, anywhere.

• AllKids Savings Account – Teach your children 
the value of money at an early age.

• AllTeens ATM Account – Give your teens a 
head start in life through learning financial 
independence.

• Savings Flex – Take advantage of the flexibility 
of having both Passbook and ATM Card.

• Payroll Account - Get introduced to easy 
banking for you and your employees.

• Regular Checking Account - Checking 
convenience at your fingertips.

• Optimum Check Plus - Enjoy better interest 
rates on your premium checking account.

• Checking Account 2000 - Affordable Checking 
Account for your dream home.

• Partner Checking Account - Designed for 
companies requiring post-dated checks from 
their end-customers.

• Regular Time Deposit - Safeguard your 
money’s growth through higher yielding 
deposits.

• Optimizer 5 - Maximize your long-term money 
investment with high-yielding interest rate.

• Foreign Currency Savings - Manage your dollar 
savings securely and conveniently.

• Foreign Currency Time Deposit - Make the 
most out of your dollar earnings through time 
deposit.

 

LOAN PRODUCTS

• Salary Loan – A multi-purpose loan granted 
to employed individuals with convenient and 
affordable payment terms

• Auto Loan – Acquisition of a brand-new car for 
personal use.

• Housing Loan – Purchase or construct your 
dream home, renovate your existing house, 
refinance your existing mortgage or just 
simply for additional investment.

• Commercial Loan – A finance facility that 
would help your business grow.

DIGITAL BANKING PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

• Mobile Banking Facility – This service allows 
AllBank clients to access their active accounts 
and perform bank transactions using their 
Mobile phones 24/7 anytime, anywhere. 
Available to Account Holders upon enrollment 
to AllBank, Inc.’s Mobile Banking Application.

• Corporate Internet Banking Facility – enables 
clients to conduct financial transactions 
(such as Balance Inquiry, Fund Transfer 
(Intra-Bank or Inter-Bank), Checkbook 
Request, etc.) conveniently and instantly 
at the comfort of their offices/homes. 
AllBank Corporate Online Banking Facility 
allows client to efficiently manage their 
company’s financial transactions right at 
their fingertips 24/7 at the comfort of their 
homes and offices. It has a maker, checker, 
and approver function.

Bank Products and Services
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• AllPay (Person-2-Merchant QRPh) – A real 
cashless and card less payment facility that 
is initiated by scanning the Merchant’s QR 
code using the customer’s mobile banking 
application. This allows the customers to pay 
for the products or services with no service 
charge or convenience fee. The Merchant 
enjoys real-time crediting of payment.

• Checkwriting Facility – A web application that 
allows batch printing of checks via upload of 
template of the check information. The system 
has a Maker, Checker and Approver Functions.

• PDC Warehousing – A self-service web 
application that allows upload of PDCs 
by the clients. Upon maturity, checks are 
posted/deposited immediately in the client’s 
account/s. The service also provides reports 
of outstanding, deposited and rejected 
checks.

• POS Cash-Out – allows cash withdrawal 
and balance inquiry transactions originating 
from POS Terminal processed in the same 
manner as an ATM transaction from certified 
POS Terminals installed in the premises 
of accredited partner institution. AllBank 
cardholders and other Bancnet participating 
members can withdraw amount not 
necessarily in multiples of P100 for as much 
as P10,000.00. This facility extends service 
reach of cash withdrawals in the remote 
areas.

• Mobile Banking Velocity Cash Card 
(E-Wallet)– is a prepaid reloadable money 
card that let’s the client access their funds 
fast and easy to purchase securely locally and 
abroad.

• POS Debit Acquiring – This facility allows 
cardholders to purchase and pay using their 
ATM/Debit cards to the certified Point–of–
sale (POS) terminal in selected authorized 
Merchants. 

• Corporate Bulk Sending - allows real-time 
processing of bulk sending via InstaPay/
Pesonet for payments/remittance via API. 
Corporate Bulk sending has no limits in 
sending for Transactions less than P50,000 
via Instapay and Pesonet for more than 
P50,000.

• Instapay & Pesonet Fund Transfer – allows the 
consumers to transfer funds from one account 
to another account of participating BSP 
supervised financial institutions.

• E-KYC – Opening of Cash Card got even 
better, simply download the AllBank Mobile 
Banking Application and open a Mobile 
Banking Velocity Cash Card.

OTHER PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
• Bills Payment – Allows the client to pay their 

bills to the Bank in partnership with Global 
Access.

• ATM Services – Services rendered by the Bank 
that allows the customers the traditional cash 
withdrawal and balance inquiry service 24/7 
through the ATM Machines of AllBank, Inc. and 
other Bancnet member Banks.

• Deposit Pick-Up Services – A service rendered 
by the Bank to its valued clients by collecting 
and securing the bulk /volume deposits for 
credit to the Client’s respective account on 
same day through Armored Car DPU.

• Payroll Services - A facility being offered by 
the bank for ease of handling of corporate 
client’s payroll accounts. Maintain a payroll 
account with minimum ADB required.

• Night Depository Services - A facility granted 
to clients who wants to place their deposits 
for safekeeping with the Bank at any time 
beyond the Banking Hours/days through the 
use of the Night Depository Box (NDB), for 
credit to their respective deposit accounts 
after verification on the following banking day.
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ALABANG BRANCH 
UGF Starmall Alabang 
South Super Highway 
Alabang, Muntinlupa 
T: (02) 8842-7099 

BATAAN BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Bataan,
Roman Super Highway 
Brgy. Cupang Proper  
Balanga, Bataan 
T: (047) 663-9240 

BACOOR-NOMO BRANCH 
Level 1 NOMO, 
A Vista Lifestyle Center 
Brgy. San Nicolas 1 Molino Blvd., 
Bacoor, Cavite 
T: (046) 416-4573 

DASMARIÑAS BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Dasmariñas 
Brgy. San Agustin 2 
Emilio Aguinaldo Highway 
Dasmariñas City, Cavite 
T: (046) 489-5005 

GENERAL TRIAS BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall General Trias 
Brgy. San Francisco Arnaldo 
Highway, 
General Trias 
T: (046) 433-9840 

GUIGUINTO BRANCH 
Cagayan Valley Road 
Sta. Rita, Guiguinto, Bulacan 
T: (044) 795-0089/670-1154 

IMUS BRANCH 
AllHome Imus 
Emilio Aguinaldo Highway Palico 
IV, Imus, Cavite 
T: (046) 433-0027

KAWIT BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Kawit 
Brgy. Magdalo, Potol Centennial 
Road, Kawit, Cavite 
T: (046) 450-0077 

LAS PIÑAS BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Las Piñas 
C.V. Starr Ave., Pamplona 2 
Las Piñas City
T: (02) 8856-2953

MAIN BRANCH 
G/F AllBank Bldg. 
EDSA cor. Cornell St. 
Brgy. Wack-Wack, Mandaluyong 
City 
T: (02) 8584-2582 

MALOLOS BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Malolos 
McArthur Highway, 
Brgy. Longos, Malolos, Bulacan, 
T: (044) 760-0915 

MOLINO BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Daang Hari 
Daang Hari cor. Molino  Molino IV, 
Bacoor Cavite 
T: (046) 438-4256 

PAMPANGA BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Pampanga 
McArthur Highway, 
Brgy. San Agustin 
San Fernando, Pampanga 
T: (045) 497-0635

SAN JOSE DEL MONTE BRANCH 
UGF Starmall San Jose Del Monte, 
Quirino Highway cor. Kaypian Road 
San Jose Del Monte, Bulacan 
T: (044) 913-1622 to 23 

STA. ROSA BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Sta. Rosa Tagaytay-
Sta. Rosa Road Sta. Rosa, Laguna 
T: (049) 545-2179 

TAGUIG BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Taguig 
Levi Mariano Ave. 
Brgy. Ususan, Taguig City 
T: (02) 8477-1844 

TANZA BRANCH 
G/F Vista Mall Tanza 
Brgy. Punta 2, Tanza, Cavite 
T: (046) 433-6058 

HEAD OFFICE 
AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
2F AllBank Bldg, EDSA cor. Cornell st. 
Brgy. Wack-Wack, Mandaluyong City 
T: (02) 8 ALLBANK/8255-2265 

Email: info@allbank.ph 
Web: www.allbank.ph

Branch Directory
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The management of ALLBANK (A Thrift Bank) Inc., is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached therein., as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2020, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework 
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.
 
In preparing, the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules 
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders. 

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the 
financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in 
their its report to the stockholders, has expressed their its opinion on the fairness of presentation 
upon completion of such audit.

LILI B. RAMIREZ
Chairman of the Board

JESUS VICENTE O. GARCIA
President

FRITZIE V. LOAYON
Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



 
 
 
 
 
 
Punongbayan & Araullo 
20th Floor, Tower 1 
The Enterprise Center 
6766 Ayala Avenue 
1200 Makati City 
Philippines 
 
T +63 2 8988 2288 
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Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. 
 
Offices in Cavite, Cebu, Davao  
BOA/ PRC Cert of Reg. No. 0002 
SEC Accreditation No. 0002 

 

 
grantthornton.com.ph 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Report of Independent Auditors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors 
AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. 
Polar Center EDSA, EDSA corner Cornell Street 
Brgy. Wack Wack, Mandaluyong City  
Metro Manila, Philippines 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of AllBank (A Thrift Bank), Inc. (the Bank), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of  
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).  Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities  
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the  
Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines 
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the 
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. 
 

 

 
 
 

- 2 - 
 
 
 

 

Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes management’s 
assessment of the continuing impact on the Bank’s financial statements of the business 
disruption brought by the COVID-19 pandemic.  Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.  
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements  
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. 
 

 

 
 
 

- 3 - 
 
 
 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.  However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole.  The supplementary information for the years ended  
December 31, 2020 and 2019 required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in  
Notes 25 and 26, respectively, to the financial statements are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not required part of the basic financial statements prepared in 
accordance with PFRS.  Such supplementary information are the responsibility of 
management.  The supplementary information have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
 

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO 
 
 
 
 

 By: Nelson J. Dinio 
  Partner 
 
  CPA Reg. No. 0097048 
  TIN 201-771-632 
  PTR No. 8533227, January 4, 2021, Makati City 
  SEC Group A Accreditation 
   Partner - No. 97048-SEC (until Dec. 31, 2023) 
   Firm - No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2024)   
  BIR AN 08-002511-032-2019 (until Sept. 4, 2022) 
  Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Jul. 24, 2021) 
       
    
    April 15, 2021 
 

2cg
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Statements of Financial Position
ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.

DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2020 2019

CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS 6  88,366,782  P           68,238,494  P          

DUE FROM BANGKO SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS 6  1,619,316,851            1,157,483,343          

DUE FROM OTHER BANKS 6  225,006,961              326,918,425             

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES ARISING FROM 
REPURCHASE AGREEMENT 6, 7  524,370,013              1,251,666,931          

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT AMORTIZED COST 8  109,036,776              34,027,182               

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - Net 9  2,711,460,193           2,640,433,429          

BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES 
AND EQUIPMENT - Net 10  70,306,710                58,781,516               

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS -Net 11  68,401,963                31,240,255               

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Net 12  91,271,915                75,205,888               

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - Net 20  29,518,109                23,334,224               

OTHER RESOURCES - Net 13  86,407,245               90,864,680               

TOTAL RESOURCES  5,623,463,518  P      5,758,194,367  P      

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 14  4,278,728,833  P      4,418,849,157  P      

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 15  149,224,493              208,265,195             

LEASE LIABILITIES 11  74,443,237               33,641,253               

Total Liabilities  4,502,396,563          4,660,755,605          

EQUITY 16  1,121,066,955           1,097,438,762          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  5,623,463,518  P      5,758,194,367  P      

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Financial Statements.

ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

R  E  S  O  U  R  C  E  S
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ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.

FOR THE YEARS DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Statements of Comprehensive Income

66 AllBank | Annual Report 2020

Notes 2020 2019

INTEREST INCOME
Loans and other receivables 9  203,254,425  P         170,857,123  P        
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and other banks 6  26,268,283               21,614,938               
Loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreement 7  17,231,657                38,850,497               
Investment securities at amortized cost 8  2,171,085                  200,737                   

 248,925,450             231,523,295             

INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit liabilities 14  47,065,661               48,872,402               
Lease liabilities 11  5,816,462                 3,077,044                

 52,882,123               51,949,446               

NET INTEREST INCOME  196,043,327              179,573,849             

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES - Net 9  5,037,778                 18,340,522               

NET INTEREST INCOME
AFTER IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  191,005,549              161,233,327             

OTHER INCOME 
Fees and commissions 2  42,773,029               37,643,527               
Miscellaneous  18  8,747,066                 21,927,294               

 51,520,095               59,570,821               

OTHER EXPENSES
Salaries and other employee benefits 17  72,584,040               56,212,321               
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11, 12, 13  40,760,076               30,787,755               
Taxes and licenses  23,282,999               20,784,781               
Security, janitorial and other services  9,211,729                  8,898,153                
Fuel and lubricants  7,464,741                 5,277,087                
Repairs and maintenance  5,162,406                 3,246,987                
Rent 11, 22  2,908,081                 6,405,352                
Miscellaneous 18  42,036,743               38,278,079               

 203,410,815              169,890,515             

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  39,114,829                50,913,633               

TAX EXPENSE 20  9,683,131                  17,600,842               

NET PROFIT  29,431,698               33,312,791               

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit plan 17 8,290,722 )(                508,509                   
Tax expense (income) 20  2,487,217                152,553 )(                   

Other Comprehensive Income - Net of tax 5,803,505 )(                355,956                   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  23,628,193  P           33,668,747  P          

See Notes to Financial Statements.

ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)



ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.

FOR THE YEARS DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Statements of Changes in Equity
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Additional    Surplus Revaluation Retained
Note Preferred Shares Common Shares Paid-in Capital Reserves Reserves Earnings Total

Balance at January 1, 2020  60,422,400  P            770,134,590  P          116,891,017  P          3,080,288  P              1,991,063  P              144,919,404  P          1,097,438,762  P       
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -   5,803,505 )(                  29,431,698                 23,628,193                

Balance at December 31, 2020 16  60,422,400  P            770,134,590  P          116,891,017  P           3,080,288  P             3,812,442 )( P               174,351,102  P           1,121,066,955  P       

Balance at January 1, 2019  60,422,400  P            749,832,750  P          110,142,793  P          3,080,288  P              1,635,107  P              111,606,613  P          1,036,719,951  P       
Issuance of shares from merger 16  -    20,301,840                 6,748,224                  -    -    -    27,050,064                
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    355,956                     33,312,791                 33,668,747                

Balance at December 31, 2019 16  60,422,400  P            770,134,590  P          116,891,017  P          3,080,288  P              1,991,063  P              144,919,404  P          1,097,438,762  P       

See Notes to Financial Statements.

ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Capital Stock
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Notes 2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax  39,114,829  P                 50,913,633  P               
Adjustments for:

Interest income 6, 7, 8, 9 248,925,450 )(                 231,523,295 )(                 
Interest received  241,791,162                   281,299,956                  
Interest paid to deposit liabilities 51,819,564 )(                   43,944,955 )(                   
Interest expense from deposit liabilities 14  47,065,661                     48,872,402                    
Depreciation and amortization 10, 11, 12, 13  40,760,076                    30,787,755                    
Interest expense on lease liability 11  5,816,462                      3,077,044                     
Impairment loss - net 9  5,050,000                      18,340,522                    
Gain on lease termination 11 226,629 )(                        -   
Amortization of premium (discount) on investment 

securities at amortized cost 8 22,818 )(                          30,409                          
Recovery from loans receivable written off 10 12,222 )(                          -   
Gain on disposal of investment properties 18  -   863,735 )(                        

Operating profit before working capital changes  78,591,507                     156,989,736                  
Increase in loans and other receivables 91,621,960 )(                   885,020,277 )(                 
Increase in investment properties 705,752 )(                        -   
Decrease (increase) in other resources 485,765 )(                        1,624,015                     
Increase (decrease) in deposit liabilities 135,366,421 )(                  2,222,788,043               
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,885,641 )(                    45,967,131                    

Cash generated from (used in) operations 193,474,032 )(                  1,542,348,648               
Cash paid for income taxes 34,353,681 )(                   20,208,582 )(                   

Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities 227,827,713 )(                  1,522,140,066               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of investment securities at amortized cost 8 75,536,776 )(                  30,000,000 )(                   
Acquisitions of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 26,600,663 )(                  13,162,308 )(                   
Acquisitions of computer software 13 3,092,038 )(                    4,065,304 )(                     
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities at amortized cost 8  550,000                         520,000                        
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 12  -    3,229,144                     

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 104,679,477 )(                 43,478,468 )(                   

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Repayment of lease liability 11 14,739,396 )(                   10,602,744 )(                   

CASH OBTAINED THROUGH MERGER 16  -    64,032,958                    

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 347,246,586 )(                  1,532,091,812               

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 6  68,238,494                    42,141,861                    
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) 6  1,157,483,343                283,200,105                  
Due from other banks 6  326,918,425                   167,873,415                  
Loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreement 6, 7  1,251,666,931                 779,000,000                  

 2,804,307,193                1,272,215,381               

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 6  88,366,782                    68,238,494                    
Due from BSP 6  1,619,316,851                 1,157,483,343               
Due from other banks 6  225,006,961                   326,918,425                  
Loans and receivables arising from repurchase agreement 6, 7  524,370,013                   1,251,666,931               

 2,457,060,607  P           2,804,307,193  P           

Supplemental Information on Non-cash Activities:

1) In 2020 and 2019, additional right-of-use assets and lease liabilities both amounting P56.9 million and P1.4 million, respectively, were recognized (see Note 11).

2) In 2020 and 2019, the Bank foreclosed investment properties amounting to P23.3 million and P1.1 million, respectively (see Note 12).

3) As a result of the Bank's business combination in 2019, transfer of identifiable assets and liabilties were made resulting to issuance of common stocks and paid 
in capital (see Note 16).

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

See Notes to Financial Statements.

ALLBANK (A THRIFT BANK), INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
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